ATIONS CERD

Di str.
GENERAL

International Convention on
the Elimination

CERD/ ¢/ SR. 1239
of all Forms of 25 August 1997
Racial Discrimination

Oiginal: ENG.ISH

COW TTEE ON THE ELI M NATI ON OF RACI AL DI SCRI M NATI ON
Fifty-first session
SUMMARY RECORD OF THE 1239t h MEETI NG

Hel d at the Palais des Nations, Geneva,
on Wednesday, 20 August 1997, at 10 a.m

Chai rman: M. BANTON
CONTENTS

CONS| DERATI ON OF REPORTS, COMMENTS AND | NFORMATI ON SUBM TTED BY STATES PARTI ES
UNDER ARTI CLE 9 OF THE CONVENTI ON (conti nued)

Seventh to tenth periodic reports of Burundi (continued)

This record is subject to correction.

Corrections should be submitted in one of the working | anguages. They
shoul d be set forth in a nmenorandum and al so incorporated in a copy of the
record. They should be sent within one week of the date of this docunent to
the Oficial Records Editing Section, roomE. 4108, Palais des Nations, Geneva.

Any corrections to the records of the public nmeetings of the Commttee
at this session will be consolidated in a single corrigendumto be issued
shortly after the end of the session.

GE. 97- 18048 (E)



CERD/ ¢/ SR. 1239
page 2

CONSI DERATI ON OF REPORTS, COMMENTS AND | NFORMATI ON SUBM TTED BY STATES PARTI ES
UNDER ARTI CLE 9 OF THE CONVENTI ON (agenda item 5) (continued)

Seventh to tenth periodic reports of Burundi (continued) (CERD/ C/295/Add. 1)

1. At the invitation of the Chairman, the nenbers of the del egati on of
Burundi resuned their places at the Committee table.

2. M. NSANZE (Burundi) said that, while there m ght seemto be a paradox
or contradiction in the statenent in the report (CERD/ C/ 295/ Add. 1) that
Burundi had no races or ethnic groups, it was nonetheless true. A group of
peopl e was considered to be an ethnic group if its nmenbers had a culture and
civilization in common. All Burundians shared not only those two features but
al so the sane | anguage and way of life, there were not even any dial ects.

Anot her defining factor for ethnic groups or tribes was the existence of
geographical divisions. |In Burundi, before the cataclysm of 1993, Hutus and
Tutsis had coexisted in the villages and collines; that ethnic m xture had not
been institutionalized by the State. There was no geographical division

bet ween groups in Burundi, and furthernore all Burundi ans shared the sane
nonot hei stic religion and the same surnames. |In short, the country had

achi eved a highly advanced degree of integration, nore than al nost any of the
countries whose nationals sat on the Conmttee. After independence, however -
and Bel gium the forner col onial Power, could not be blamed - that integration
had been di srupted by the Burundi ans thensel ves, Hutus and Tutsis, in their
struggle for power. Currently there existed what mght be called artificia
political ethnic groups, whereas, froma purely biological standpoint, there
were nunerous nixed famlies deriving fromcenturies of intermarriage. The
break in integration dated to the post-colonial era.

3. Burundi had notably been influenced by events in neighbouring Rwanda,
where the social disaster of 1958-59 had led to the first genocide.

Mor eover, Burundi was overpopul ated, with alnpbst 7 mllion inhabitants
living on 30,000 square netres of territory. Poverty, underdevel opnent and
over popul ati on were the real causes of the chronic conflict in his country.
The successive tragedies affecting Burundi were being attributed to the
respective ethnic groups, but they had coexisted peacefully over the
centuries. It was the politicians, the elite - especially those lacking in
political intelligence, professionalism academic qualifications or other
skills - who had created the so-called “ethnic” cleavage for their own
political and material survival. There was only one ethnic group in Burundi

4, The ignobl e assassi nation of President Ndadaye in 1993 had been
condemmed by nost Burundi ans; he had been the President not of one socia
faction but of the entire country. Sonme said he had been assassi nated because
he was Hutu, but in fact it had been for political reasons. Many Tutsis had
voted for him they had grown rich during the previous regi me and had even
contributed to his presidential canpaign. In August 1995 M. Nsanze had
addressed the Security Council, calling for an urgent internationa

i nvestigative conmission to identify the President’s assassins as well as

t hose responsible for the nmassacres of many Hutus and Tutsis. Those nassacres
had unfortunately recurred, alnost since the tine of independence, and they
were committed both by Hutus against Tutsis and by Tutsis against Hutus.



CERD/ C/ SR. 1239
page 3

5. According to the International Comm ssion of Inquiry in Burundi

genoci de had occurred agai nst a part of the popul ati on, but another part of

t he popul ation had al so been the victimof nassacres; a nore inpartial body
woul d have to resolve the question. Recently, the Secretary-GCGeneral and the
Security Council had been asked to create an international crimnal court, but
nei ther of them had considered it was the right tinme to do so. 1In the
meanti me, national courts had been established.

6. M . BARAHI RAJE (Burundi) said that one of the Government’s nain
priorities was to conbat inpunity. Specialized chanbers had been created
within the appeals courts, of which there were three and had been operating
for nore than two years. Defence was provided by the bar association, with

t he assistance of international |awers. Case files had been drawn up

convi ctions were being handed down and executed and | egal proceedi ngs were now
under way; a detailed list of activities could be provided.

7. M_. NSANZE (Burundi) said that since the new reginme had come to power in
Burundi in July 1996, the neighbouring countries had held high-Ievel neetings
and proposed certain measures, such as sending security assistance - a
euphemismfor creating a mlitary presence in Burundi. That idea had aroused
wi despread protest, although sone segnents of the popul ati on had been in
favour. The nei ghbouring countries had then proclaimed an econom c bl ockade
agai nst Burundi that same nonth. The Government had nade sonme m stakes in
reacting to the bl ockade. Fromthe |egal standpoint, however, it was

pl eadi ng, not on behalf of the regime, but of the Burundi an people. Contrary
to what the authors of the enmbargo had anticipated, it was the population -
Twas, Hutus and Tutsis - that was suffering the nost, and not the regine. The
Government was doing everything in its power to have the enmbargo |ifted, but
the conditions inposed made it difficult for it to negotiate. Mdst of the
Governnment’s political partners were willing to negotiate, but some including
the political party of President Buyoya, were not; it was a dilemm, but
everyone was now eagerly awaiting the outconme of the negotiations schedul ed
for 25 August.

8. Sone of the political players were refusing to participate in

the negoti ati ons because the National Council for the Defence of

Denmocracy (CNDD), which sone had accused of conmitting genocide, had been
invited to participate. Wre all CNDD nenbers guilty of genocide? Once an

i nternational or national |egal body was established, it nmust take care to

i dentify those responsible for genocide within the political novenents,

whet her the CNDD, other political parties or the former presidential majority,
and those designated as authors of genocide should be excluded fromthe
negoti ati ons. Anyone - whether civilian or mlitary - suspected of being

i nvol ved in genocide or attenpted genoci de should be brought to justice and
tried by international judges, national judges or a conbination thereof.
Interrogations were already under way in connection with the assassination of
Presi dent Ndadaye, involving 79 soldiers, including one high-ranking officer,
as well as some civilians.

9. Burundi was a snall, overpopul ated, |andl ocked country and one of the

| east devel oped; the enbargo was having a disastrous effect, much worse than
the effect of the enbargoes agai nst Cuba, which was surrounded by water

Li bya, only a very small proportion of whose econony was affected; or lraqg, a



CERD/ C/ SR. 1239
page 4

rich oil-producing country with other econom c, conmercial and industria
sources. The Burundi an people were dying as a result of the enbargo; the
Conmittee should take action to help them

10. Menmbers had asked about the distribution of power anong the various
groups in the Governnent, the arny, the justice system etc. He was opposed
to any system of quotas for certain groups in such jobs, which mght itself
become a formof racial discrimnation. People were not enployed because they
were Hutu or Tutsi, but because they were qualified for the job. No
Government since Burundi's independence had consisted entirely of nmenbers of
one group, although naturally there had at tinmes been some nepotism or
favouritismto the benefit of one group over another. Some injustices had
occurred, but the Governnment was determned to resolve them by neans of a

nati onal forum where all groups could neet on an equal basis and state their

claims. 1In any case, the injustices were not necessarily based on ethnic
grounds: in 1986, he hinself had been thrown into prison by the then
Presi dent Bagaza, a Tutsi |ike hinself, because of his political opinions.

11. Menmbers had asked about the conduct of the Burundi army. The army had
been faced with a dilema. The Hutus had accused the Tutsis of carrying out
massacres, and vice versa, and the arnmy had felt obliged to intervene in order
to protect the people. It was not taking action against Hutus or Tutsis, but
against crimnals. |If the Commttee wished, it could send a delegation to
Burundi to investigate the army's conduct and show that it had done only what
was necessary. Naturally, sone nenbers of the army had conmitted acts of

vi ol ence, particularly those who had lost their families in the massacres

of 1993 and 1994; sone of those acts had been ethnically notivated, but the
perpetrators had been duly punished for them Such acts had considerably
decreased in recent years.

12. M. BARAHI RAJE (Burundi), replying to the question about the nunber of
Hutus enployed in the judicial system said that he had begun his own | ega
career under a Hutu judge. He had not been aware of any ethnic problens.

It was only later that the “denonization” of the Hutus had begun. The

Vi ce- Chai rman of the National Assenbly was a Hutu, and had been prosecuted
for his actions during the political crisis, although he had been acquitted.
The judicial systemtook no account of a person's ethnic origin, and had
certainly not dism ssed any Hutu judges.

13. M. NSANZE (Burundi) said that, if the Committee was concerned about the
distribution of power in the country, it would do better to ask about the
representation of the various political parties, rather than that of the
various tribal groups. It was true that nost nmenbers of the CGovernnment were
Hut us, al though he was still reluctant to use the term“Hutu” or “Tutsi”
because the various groups did not have different |anguages, culture or
territories and were thus not considered by the Governnent to be different
ethnic groups. To give sone specific figures, the Governnent appointed

in 1993 by President Ndadaye had contai ned between 8 and 12 menbers (out of a
total of between 23 and 27) belonging to the party which had | ost the

el ection. President Ndadaye had not been obliged to appoint them but he had
done so to increase the sense of security of both Hutus and Tutsis. He did
not have any figures about the distribution of power between the various
groups in the new Governnent.



CERD/ C/ SR. 1239
page 5

14. M . BARAHI RAJE (Burundi) said that the Government in power
since 25 July 1996 was a Governnment of National Union, whose aimwas nationa
reconciliation and which contained representatives of all political opinions.

15. Menmbers had asked why the Constitution had been suspended.
Unfortunately, sone provisions of the old Constitution had made it inpossible
to restore full political order, and the Constitution had been suspended for
t hat reason.

16. M. NSANZE (Burundi) recalled that nmenbers had asked about the situation
of the Twa group. The data quoted about the ethnic composition of Burund

were very questionable, since there had never been a census in the country.
The Twa peopl e were not excluded from Burundi society and were not persecuted
in any way. They had chosen to live at the margin of society, away fromthe
Hutu and Tutsi groups. The new Governnent had invited themto participate in
political affairs.

17. Menbers had asked about the Abashi ngantahe Council, or council of w se
people (“sages”). In its original form the nmenbers of the Council had been
chosen by the popul ation, both Hutu and Tutsi, for their noral qualities and
social and political skills. A few nonths before, the Council had been
officially recognized in a presidential decree. Sone still felt that the
peopl e shoul d choose the nenbers of the Council, whereas others felt that
their nom nation by the head of State would be a safeguard agai nst
segregationi st tendencies. The Council, which had approximately 10 femal e
menbers, had recently asked the President for decision-nmaking powers, in
addition to its existing advisory role, and that issue was still being

debat ed.

18. Regardi ng the new regine's achievenents in the area of peace and
security, sone progress had been made, but nmany problenms remained in the

adm nistration, the judicial systemand other sectors partly because of the
econom ¢ bl ockade. Acts of violence by the security forces always received
consi derable publicity, but the atrocities comritted by the rebels against
both Hutus and Tutsis appeared to go unnoticed. The CGovernnment was determ ned
to fulfil its commtnment to restore peace and security for all Burundi ans.

19. In reply to questions about the “regroupnment canps” for civilians in
various parts of the country, he explained that because of the many nassacres
whi ch had taken place, civilians, both Hutu and Tutsi, had been invited to
gather in the canps for displaced persons, where they received the proper and
necessary mlitary protection, and had done so voluntarily. The neasure had
drawn considerable international criticismbecause it had not been properly
understood. It was only a tenporary mnmeasure which did not affect the people's
rights to carry on farm ng and other econonmic activities.

20. Menmbers had asked why there had been no | egal proceedi ngs agai nst
persons who had committed acts of racial or ethnic discrimnation. The
Government was trying to set up an inpartial mechani smthrough the crimna
chanbers to consider, inter alia, racial or ethnic discrimnation cases, as
well as reformng the crimnal justice systemas a whole. The accused had the
right to national or international counsel for their defence. However,
trained and inpartial judges would be needed who enjoyed the trust of the
peopl e.



CERD/ C/ SR. 1239
page 6

21. M . BARAHI RAJE (Burundi) said that three crim nal chanbers, functioning
within the appeal courts, were in operation in the country: he would send the
Conmittee statistics and tables relating to their work. The people who
appeared before those chanbers were prosecuted in accordance with the | aw
establishing the crimnal chanbers and Burundi crimnal |aw and were granted
all the rights of a defendant, including the right to appeal to the court of
cassation, the Suprene Court and even to the President who could grant mercy
only after consultation with the Supreme Council of the Magistrature.

22. Returning to the question of peace and security, he said that the new
Governnment's main aimwas to restore the authority of the State and then to
establish a peace process in which the parties to the conflict could resolve
their differences. A Mnistry for the Peace Process had just been
established. Insecurity persisted in sone parts of the country, but the
overall situation was gradually inproving. He felt that the Governnent's
actions so far were anple proof of its sincere wish for peace.

23. M_. NSANZE (Burundi), replying to questions on human rights
associ ations, said that there were a nunber of nulti-ethnic human rights
| eagues i n Burundi

24. As far as the refugees were concerned, their situation could only be
descri bed as a national tragedy. Burundi was adnmittedly one of the greatest
originators of refugees but it had al ways been the policy of the present and
previ ous regi nes, at |east theoretically, to appeal to themto return
Unfortunately the conditions obtaining in the country at certain tines had
constituted an obstacle to the return of all refugees. According to recent

i nformati on, there were 200,000 Burundi an refugees in Tanzania and a further
80,000 in the Denocratic Republic of the Congo. However, as the conditions in
Burundi were now worse than ever due to the total econonmic bl ockade, it was
likely that people would return to find thensel ves refugees in their own
country.

25. Burundi therefore needed the help of the international comunity in
securing a total lifting of the enbargo agai nst the Burundi an people. Neither
the Committee nor any other United Nations body nor its respective Menber
States were being called upon to recognize the current regine but rather to
hel p the Burundi an people create a healthy atnosphere in their country. His
party was prepared to negotiate with all national novenents which could
denonstrate their representativity. N ne political parties, formerly in
opposition, including the hard-liners, had been represented at all the

meeti ngs which he had chaired at party headquarters, and high-level talks were
expected to take place shortly between the mlitary, the arned rebels and the
politicians.

26. Assistance in the formof international troops was not required and was
unjustified. The Burundi arny, despite periods of armed insurrection, had
succeeded in limting the danage and was in the process of conmpleting its

m ssion. However, if the mlitary were found to have conmitted acts of an
illegal nature against the population, it would be penalized.



CERD/ ¢/ SR. 1239
page 7

27. In addition to international assistance, he proposed formally that the
Committee itself should send a special fact-finding delegation to Burundi to
see for itself what was happeni ng and who was responsible for the massacres.
Any judgenent nmade at a di stance woul d be subjective and based on inconplete
information. It was therefore his hope that the Commttee would respond
positively to his proposal

28. Burundi's problem was not an ethnic one but a political one, brought
about by the reginmes of three successive mlitary heads of State, who had

f ought anongst thensel ves, not for ethnic reasons since they were all Tutsis,
but for power. Political solutions were therefore required. A denpcratic
system needed to be established to put into power a | eader whose policies were
the nost reliable and acceptable to the people.

29. The arny woul d al so have to be restructured once a national covenant of
peaceful intercomunity exi stence had been established. To that end,
recruitment on the basis of qualification rather than on a regional or ethnic
basis, would ensure its neutrality and readi ness to serve any head of State,
whet her Hutu, Tutsi or Twa. In that connection the South African arny had set
an exanpl e which Burundi would do well to follow

30. Anmong the reasons for Burundi's situation, poverty, overpopul ation and a
| ack of resources both in the private and public sectors were the nost

obvious. The private sector was snmall and could not hope to nake good the
shortcom ngs of the State apparatus, for instance with regard to enpl oyment.
The answer to Burundi and Rwanda's problens therefore |ay beyond nationa
boundaries. Only regional integration could provide the vital space for the
popul ati ons and the opportunities they so urgently needed.

31. Anot her inportant objective was to elimnate all ethnic influence in
politics and to establish a political |eadership capable of achieving the
country's objectives. Indeed those were the two main objectives of his own

political party. Burundi needed political |eaders who would provide
hospital s, schools, jobs and security, but they would not succeed w t hout
i nternational help.

32. As to where the country was going and the solution to the cycle of
vi ol ence, only national reconciliation would enable all parties to coexist in
a country that was safe, united and peaceful for all three conmponent groups.

33. The CHAI RMAN t hanked the del egation for the clarity and force w th which
it had el aborated on the Covernnent's policies. It had been especially
satisfactory to note the parallel drawn with the South African process of
reconciliation.

34. M. WOFRUM (Country Rapporteur) said that differences in perception
between the Committee and the del egati on appeared to have | essened to sone
extent in the course of the dial ogue.

35. He fully agreed with the representative of Burundi that the task of the
Burundi Government and of the Committee was the protection of individuals or
groups. The Committee did not take sides and spoke only for individuals who



CERD/ C/ SR. 1239
page 8

for many years had |l ed a very dangerous and unsatisfactory existence in
Burundi. |Its objectives were the sane as those of the population in terms of
better living conditions.

36. Furthernore, the Conmttee had no intention of starting any process
which mght lead to the disintegration of the State and had even passed a
general recomrendation to that effect. Its aimwas to preserve the integrity
of States.

37. It was undoubtedly true, as the delegation had stated, that a solution
to the problens of the Burundi popul ation could only be found at the regiona
level. It was therefore inportant that each State in the region should be

ready for a solution. Cooperation between neighbouring States in the region
was al so essential, bearing in nmind in particular the claimthat Burundi was a
victimof devel opments of other countries. For instance, although Burundi was
produci ng refugees, it had al so received refugees and that had an inpact on
the situation in the country.

38. He had taken sone encouragenment from a statenent which had been brought
to his notice that negotiations had started between the Government and the
CNDD at the beginning of the year and that both parties had decided to
identify the problenms and the causes of the Burundi conflict and agree upon
appropriate solutions, notably the nmechani sms whi ch woul d guarantee the
restitution of constitutional order, peaceful coexistence, the protection of
all strata of the Burundi popul ation, the cessation of all hostilities and the
end of violence. He fully agreed with those objectives.

39. One of the nost inportant elenents of that process was the probl em of
identification. The Conmittee had been told that the problemwas a politica
one. In the Commttee's experience, few issues were of a non-politica

nature. Some of Burundi's problens were clearly due to overpopul ati on and
econom ¢ hardship resulting fromthe devastating effect of the enbargo.

O hers undoubtedly stemred fromthe artificially created di vergences which
only the peace plan could solve. Divergences clearly existed in the
perception of some groups, and the present reginme should therefore be striving
to overcone them and restore national unity. |In that respect at |east the
Committee and the del egation were in agreenment. The issue was a serious one
whi ch required nore work, insight and assessnent. The discussion had
nevertheless led to a better understanding and there had been some very

prom sing indications in the State party's statenent.

40. Anot her serious problemto be solved was that of inpunity, and Burund
was not alone in that respect. South Africa, too, had had to deal with the
probl em and its ingenious solution mght be worth | ooking into, but not
necessarily copying. Although crimnal law did not solve all problens, it was
essential that those who had conmitted nass violations of human rights should
be brought to justice and prosecuted regardl ess of their present positions in
the arny, the judiciary or el sewhere. The three special chanmbers which had
been established and the 80 soldiers facing trial would not al one be the
answer. The question raised the previous day as to whether those who had been
accused of participation in the 1993 and | ater massacres had been brought to
trial had not been answered nor did the figures supplied provide any

i ndi cati on.



CERD/ C/ SR. 1239
page 9

41. The Committee had received additional inportant information on the
court system notably that foreign barristers could participate in court
proceedi ngs. That was a wel cone devel opnent which should be nentioned in the
concl udi ng observations as a positive aspect. However, the Committee had

| earned that, for reasons unknown, no foreign barristers had participated in
the trial of a Twa who had recently been sentenced to death.

42. Much had been said about the quota systemand that it was inappropriate
on ethnic grounds. That argunent was understandabl e where the Government, the
adm nistration and the judiciary were concerned. However, as the country
clearly did not have enough qualified people fromall ethnic groups, the
educational system shoul d be opened up to everybody on an equal footing. The
statement by a nmenber of the delegation that there had been injustices in the
past whi ch needed to be corrected was encouraging for the future.

43. The regroupment system renai ned a cause for concern despite the
assurance that the free will of the people had been upheld. The fact that
regroupnent had been carried out under military control and surveillance could
have a negative inpact on certain parts of the population nore than on others.
It would be absolutely contrary to the International Convention on the

Eli mination of All Fornms of Racial Discrimnation if regrouping were to result
in sone formof ethnic cleansing, whether intentional or by effect. There had
been no indication of ethnic cleansing and no accusati ons were bei ng nade but
in the light of experience el sewhere, the warning had to be given.

44, I nformati on had been provi ded about the refugees who had |eft Burund
and the appeal for themto return to their country, where it was hoped they
woul d find reconciliation, but the problem of the refugees in Burund

remai ned, whatever their country of origin, and their situation gave rise to
consi derabl e concern

45. In response to the del egation's encouragenent to the Commttee to send a
del egation to Burundi to appreciate the situation there at first hand, he
expl ained that the Committee had never before taken such a step. It had

previously sent a mission to Kosovo, but nmore for nediation than for inquiry
pur poses, and on two other occasions had sent a nenber to other countries to
of fer assistance. It would therefore have to consider the offer further and
he woul d reserve any judgenent on the issue for the tinme being. The idea did
have the nerit of affording the Comrittee an opportunity to obtain direct
informati on on the situation rather than assessing it from afar

46. He was not sure whether it was within the nandate of the Comrittee to
send such a m ssion, since that was nornmally a matter for the United Nations
to decide, but he appreciated the spirit in which the offer had been extended
and considered the offer to be a very positive nmove on the part of the

del egation. 1t showed a willingness on the part of Burundi to continue the
di al ogue on a very solid basis and to avail itself of the Comrmittee's
assistance - one of the Conmittee's nain roles - in exam ning the root causes

of the situation in Burundi, and it would certainly nake for nore objective
grounds on which the Commttee could base its further consideration of the
i mpl ementation of the Convention in Burundi



CERD/ C/ SR. 1239
page 10

47. He wel comed the positive attitude denpbnstrated towards continued
constructive, nore inforned dialogue, and expressed the hope that the
Conmittee woul d be able to help Burundi in overcom ng a very di scouragi ng and
serious situation. The delegation of Burundi could rest assured of the
Committee's commitnent to extending all possible assistance.

48. M. YUTZIS said in connection with the differences of opinion on the
definition of what constituted an ethnic group, there were statistics,

concl usive data on the effects of the situation in Burundi on the Hutus and,
mai nly, the Tutsis. At the current stage of events, which probably were
rooted in the history of the country, there was indeed a political division
which as M. Wil frum had said could be interpreted in many ways. |If it was a
probl em of power, it translated into tensions between two groups which had

al ready been delimted in one way or the other. That seened to be an

undi sput abl e fact.

49. Par agraph 26 of the report, in connection with the inplenentation of
article 4, stated that the Political Parties Act prohibited all forns of

di scrimnation based on ethnic status. Such a provision could hardly have
been introduced with foreign ethnic groups in nmnd and was to be seen as proof
that the problemexisted within the country, otherwise it would be totally
abstract and have nothing to do with the potential for discrimnation in

Bur undi

50. Econom ¢ bl ockades had never had nmuch effect in the past, and very often
had a severely negative inpact on the population, particularly the civilian
popul ati on. He recognized that the probl em between Hutus was Tutsis was not
uni que to Burundi; all States in the region were affected and none shoul d
evade its responsibilities towards the groups concerned. |In that connection
the information available to the Conmttee was disturbing.

51. M. ABOUL- NASR associ ated hinself with all of M. Wl frum s concl udi ng
remar ks and thanked the del egation of Burundi for its invitation to the
Committee to send a nenber or a group to ascertain the situation there. He
suggested that a formal invitation m ght be extended by way of a letter to the
Committee through the United Nations Hi gh Comm ssioner for Human Ri ghts.

52. On the question of the delegation's request for assistance fromthe
Conmittee and for inclusion in its findings of an acknow edgenent of the human
suffering occasi oned by the econonmi c bl ockade of Burundi, he wondered whet her
t he del egation could tell the Conmittee, if, as in the case of Iraq,
statenments had been issued by other United Nations organizations on the
suffering caused by the econom c bl ockade. |If not, perhaps the State party

m ght consi der also appealing to other United Nations organi zati ons, whose
subsequent statenents nmight provide a basis for the Commttee's action

53. M. NSANZE (Burundi) said that national reconciliation was the ultimte
goal of a long and arduous process that should be initiated as soon as
possi bl e, but could not be achi eved overni ght.

54. The political situation was problematic and required a politica
solution. It was true that ethnic groups did now exist but their node of
exi stence was not conpatible with the scientific, etynological and biol ogica



CERD/ ¢/ SR. 1239
page 11

definition of an ethnic group. There was no attenpt by the delegation to

m nimze the recogni zed fact that they were political realities. On the
contrary, their passion was explained by the very fact that they were
artificial and not authentic. Their existence was an inescapable fact that
had to be taken into account and a solution found for the problem of what he
saw as “politico-ethnic groups”, which were to be treated accordingly.

55. He agreed entirely with the comment that the trial of 80 soldiers did
not solve the problem of past massacres, saying that perpetrators of such
crinmes, regardless of their ethnic origin, should be brought to trial. The
situation had not been addressed adequately and he had been informed that
there were 6,000 case files on alleged nass killings, so the problem had not
been forgotten.

56. He was unaware of the case of Stanislas Mashini, a nember of the Twa
et hnic group, but would request further informtion

57. The del egati on of Burundi agreed whol eheartedly with the Comm ttee that
ethnicity should not be institutionalized. As to whether there was

di scrimnation in education and whether Hutus were being victimzed through
the system he explained that prior to Burundi's accession to independence,
education was provided by white European m ssionaries. Any blame for
subsequent discrimnation in education should therefore be laid at their door
During the colonial era, a school had been established for the education of
the princely and royal caste which had never identified itself with either
Tutsis or Hutus. After the dissolution of the caste, its nmenbers had

al ternated between association with the Tutsis and the Hutus dependi ng on

whi ch of the groups had held political power. After independence the schools
had still been run by the clergy and mi ssionaries until the accession of
Presi dent Bagaza to power but even then there had been no discrimnation

what soever between Tutsis and Hutus. However, during the Bagaza regine a
system designed to discrimnate in favour of Tutsis had been devel oped - and
that was indeed one of the reasons for the overthrow of that regine. The
successive regimes in Burundi were, therefore, not responsible for

di scrimnation in schools. Such discrinmnation no |onger existed. If the
Conmittee sent a delegation to Burundi it would be a perfect opportunity to
determ ne the true situation

58. Addressing the point made by M. Wl frumthat the regroupment canps were
under mlitary, police or mlitia control, he said that M. Wl frum seened to
have m ssed the point that many centres for displaced persons had been fornmed
spont aneously during the tragic events over the previous four-five years and
they had included both Tutsis and Hutus. It was true that under the
initiative of the current Governnment, the popul ati on had been regrouped in
sonme zones. He challenged the Comrittee, through the proposed del egation, to
ascertain whether there had been any instances whatsoever of regrouped persons
bei ng shot by nmenbers of the police or the mlitary. No Governnent could dare
perpetrate such acts. There were nmany international observers on site; while
it was true that nmany of the organi zations to which they bel onged consi dered
that the regroupnent canps restricted the human rights of the canp-dwellers,
the Governnent considered that regroupnent was a tenporary measure and was the



CERD/ ¢/ SR. 1239
page 12

| esser of two evils. Furthernore, the presence of the arnmy was to ensure that
the people in the canps did not fall prey to armed Tutsi and Hutu bandits as
wel | as rebels who were responsible for many atrocities, nostly against Hutus.

59. In response to M. Wbl frums query about the treatnent of refugees from
ot her countries, he concluded by saying that he was unaware of any
m streatment. In fact, traditionally, Burundi had been a haven for refugees

fromother countries in the Geat Lakes region. He invited the Conmittee to
furnish his delegation with specific information of any m streatnent of such
refugees so that corrective action could be taken

60. M. ABOUL- NASR noted that Burundi was reporting to the Conmmittee for the
first tinme. Referring to M. Wl frum s summing up, he said that the fact that
there was still disagreement was not to be construed as an accusation of the
State party. On the contrary, the aimwas to ascertain the inplenentation of
t he Convention, and questions, such as those on education, had been raised
with Burundi in the same way as they were with all other States parties in an
endeavour to stress the inportance of education in elimnating discrimnation
The Committee wished to assist States parties in inplenmenting the Convention
and in that regard, respected the points of view of States parties and | ooked
forward to reciprocity fromthem

61. He invited the delegation of Burundi to reviewthe Comrmittee's
consideration of the reports of other States parties which would reveal that
the Committee had been very circunspect and cooperative in its consideration
of the report fromBurundi in conparison with its characteristically critica
approach. He hoped that his explanation would allay any feelings that the
del egati on of Burundi m ght have had that the Committee was criticizing its
country.

62. The CHAIRMAN regretted that there had not been an opportunity to brief
the del egation on the Conmittee's procedure. The Commttee wel comed further
di al ogue with the del egati on and | ooked forward to readi ng the remaining
points in the next report.

63. M . NSANZE (Burundi) assured the Committee that at no time had his

del egation considered that the Conmttee had been | evelling accusations or
criticismat his delegation, Government or country. On the contrary, the
Committee had been seeking to elicit facts and to propose sol utions based on
such facts. His delegation's statenents had been prompted by a need to give
its views and clarify information on sone situations, thereby avoiding any
anmbiguity and laying the ground for positive and productive di al ogue. He
assured the Cormittee of his famliarity with the Convention and the
Conmittee's work.

64. He agreed with M. Aboul -Nasr's suggestion about a statement on the
suffering caused by the econom ¢ bl ockade and said that a conprehensive
statement woul d be issued soon to address the problem of what he saw as the
wor st sanctions ever to be inposed on any State in the history of the

i nternational comunity.



CERD/ C/ SR. 1239
page 13

65. M. WOLFRUM endorsed M. Aboul -Nasr's explanation of the Committee's
approach and stressed the Conmittee's conm tnment to ongoi ng dialogue. To that
end, he rem nded the del egation of the inportance of sending a formal request
to the H gh Conm ssioner for Human Rights to entrust one or nore memnbers of
the Committee with a mssion to Burundi, as M. Aboul - Nasr had suggested.

Wt hout a formal request there could be no decision. There would also be a
need to send a separate request for technical assistance.

66. In conclusion, he hoped that the consideration of the next report and
t he ensui ng di al ogue woul d be constructive and engaged with a Conmittee in
possession of first-hand information

67. The CHAI RMAN t hanked the del egation of Burundi for its attendance in
spite of difficulties and its denmpnstration of the State party's commitnent to
dialogue in a bid to inprove the inplenentation of the Convention in Burundi

The neeting rose at 12.55 p. m




